
  
UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

 
 

FORM 8-K/A
 

 

CURRENT REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported) July 25, 2017
 

 

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

 
 

 
DELAWARE  000-49602  77-0118518

(State or Other Jurisdiction
of Incorporation)  

(Commission
File Number)  

(IRS Employer
Identification No.)

1251 McKay Drive
San Jose, California 95131

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(408) 904-1100
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

 
 

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following
provisions (see General Instruction A.2. below):
 

☐ Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
 

☐ Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)
 

☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
 

☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933 (§230.405 of
this chapter) or Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (§240.12b-2 of this chapter).

Emerging growth company  ☐

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.  ☐
   



Amendment No. 1

Explanatory Note

As previously disclosed by Synaptics Incorporated (the “Company” or “Synaptics”) under Item 2.01 of its Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
July 26, 2017 (the “Original 8-K”), the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding limited liability company interests of Conexant Systems,
LLC (“Conexant”), resulting in Conexant becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Conexant Acquisition”), effective as of July 25, 2017.

This Current Report on Form 8-K/A amends the Original 8-K to file the financial information required by Items 9.01(a) and 9.01(b) of Form 8-K.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired.

The audited consolidated financial statements of Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and
the notes related thereto are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1 and are incorporated herein by reference.

The unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of CNXT Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries, formerly Conexant Systems, Inc. and
subsidiaries, as of June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016, and the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the nine month
periods ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016, and the notes related thereto, are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.

The required unaudited pro forma financial information for Synaptics, after giving effect to the acquisition of Conexant and adjustments
described in such pro forma financial information, as of and for the twelve months ended June 24, 2017 is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.3 and is incorporated
herein by reference.

(d) Exhibits.
 
Exhibit No.  Description

23.1   Consent of BDO USA, LLP

99.1
  

Audited consolidated financial statements of Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016,
and the notes related thereto

99.2

  

The unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of CNXT Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries, formerly Conexant Systems, Inc. and
subsidiaries, as of June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016 and the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income and cash flows
for the nine-month periods ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016, and the notes related thereto

99.3
  

Unaudited pro forma financial information for Synaptics, after giving effect to the acquisition of Conexant, for the twelve months ended
June 24, 2017



EXHIBIT INDEX
 
Exhibit No.  Description

23.1   Consent of BDO USA, LLP

99.1
  

Audited consolidated financial statements of Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016,
and the notes related thereto

99.2

  

The unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of CNXT Holdings, Inc., formerly Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries, as of
June 30, 2017 and September  30, 2016 and the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the nine-
month periods ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016, and the notes related thereto

99.3
  

Unaudited pro forma financial information for Synaptics, after giving effect to the acquisition of Conexant, as of and for the twelve
months ended June 24, 2017



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
 

  SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED

Date: October 10, 2017   By:  /s/ Wajid Ali
    Wajid Ali
    Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Synaptics Incorporated

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-155582 and 333-219713), Form S-8 (Nos. 333-
81820, 333-99529, 333-99531, 333-146146, 333-170400, 333-170401, 333-193470, and 333-214950) and Form S-4 (No. 333-115274) of Synaptics
Incorporated, of our report dated December 23, 2016, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2016, which appears in this Form 8-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Costa Mesa, California

October 10, 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Conexant Systems, Inc.
Irvine, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Conexant Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as of September 30, 2016, and the related consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income, stockholder’s equity and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Conexant Systems, Inc.
and its subsidiaries as of September 30, 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/BDO USA, LLP
December 23, 2016
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Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(in thousands, except share data)

 
 
   

September 30,
2016  

Assets   

Current assets:   
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 50,968 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $12    11,849 
Inventories, net    12,450 
Other current assets    3,412 

    
 

Total current assets    78,679 

Property and equipment, net    2,500 
Goodwill    136 
Intangible assets, net    28,209 
Restricted cash, less current portion    647 
Other assets    2,887 

    
 

Total assets   $ 113,058 
    

 

Liabilities and Stockholder’s Equity   
Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable   $ 6,656 
Accrued compensation and benefits    3,694 
Other current liabilities    4,736 

    
 

Total current liabilities    15,086 

Long-term liabilities:   
Long-term debt    15,000 
Deferred tax liabilities, net    1,821 
Income tax liabilities    1,440 
Accrued licenses    2,817 
Other liabilities    4,112 

    
 

Total liabilities    40,276 

Commitments and contingencies   

Stockholder’s equity:   
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding    10 
Additional paid-in capital    94,990 
Accumulated deficit    (21,163) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (1,055) 

    
 

Total stockholder’s equity    72,782 
    

 

Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity   $ 113,058 
    

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
(in thousands)

 
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
Net revenues   

Product sales   $ 99,036 
Licensing and other    5,169 

    
 

Total net revenues    104,205 

Cost of goods sold    39,503 
    

 

Gross profit    64,702 

Operating expenses:   
Research and development    27,054 
Selling, general and administrative    24,514 
Reorganization fees    3,549 
Amortization of intangible assets    5,900 

    
 

Total operating expenses    61,017 
    

 

Operating income    3,685 

Other (expense) income:   
Interest expense    (1,529) 
Other income, net    1,950 

    
 

Total other expense, net    (421) 
    

 

Income before income tax benefit    4,106 

Income tax benefit, net    255 
    

 

Net income    4,361 
    

 

Other comprehensive loss, foreign currency translation, net of tax    (226) 
    

 

Comprehensive income   $ 4,135 
    

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Stockholder’s Equity
(in thousands, except share data)

 
 

 

  

Common Stock  

  

Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

  

Accumulated
Deficit  

 Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

(net of tax)  

 

Total
Shareholder’s

Equity  

        
        
        
  Shares    Amount       

Balance at October 2, 2015    1,000,000   $ 10   $ 94,990   $ (25,524)  $ (829)  $ 68,647 
Net income    —      —      —      4,361   —     4,361 
Currency translation adjustment    —      —      —      —     (226)   (226) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Balance at September 30, 2016    1,000,000   $ 10   $ 94,990   $ (21,163)  $ (1,055)  $ 72,782 
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

 
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
Cash flows from operating activities:   

Net income   $ 4,361 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities:   

Depreciation and amortization    1,055 
Amortization of intangible assets    5,900 
Provision for (reversal of) bad debt, net    9 
Provision for inventory, net    398 
Deferred income taxes    381 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment    27 
Stock-based compensation    —   
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   

Restricted Cash    132 
Accounts receivable    (3,834) 
Inventories    719 
Other assets    (2,857) 
Accounts payable    (178) 
Accrued compensation and benefits    793 
Other liabilities    1,530 
Income taxes    (1,265) 

    
 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities    7,171 
    

 

Cash flows from investing activities   
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments, net    2,725 
Proceeds from sale of investments    455 
Purchases of property and equipment    (442) 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets    30 

    
 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by investing activities    2,768 
    

 

Cash flows from financing activities   
Payments on capital leases    (33) 

    
 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in financing activities    (33) 
    

 

Effect of changes in exchange rate    (349) 
    

 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents    9,557 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    41,411 

    
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 50,968 
    

 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information   
Cash paid during the year for:   

Interest   $ 1,525 
Income taxes, net   $ 137 

    

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
1. Description of Business

Conexant Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation, (“Conexant” or the “Company”) designs, develops and sells semiconductor system solutions, comprised of
semiconductor devices, software and reference designs for audio and imaging applications. The Company also sells stand-alone software licenses and
services. The Company is focused on delivering products for audio applications that combine embedded audio and voice. These voice processing audio
solutions are found in smart TV, smart appliance and mobile computing platforms such as notebooks, convertibles and tablets. The Company’s products are
used in unified communications and in advanced gaming headsets to deliver a high quality audio experience. The Company’s imaging product portfolio
includes highly integrated multifunction printer and single function printers system-on-chip solutions supporting inkjet, mono laser, color laser,
dye-sublimation, and thermal transfer print engines. The Company’s cloud imaging embedded software supports printing, scanning, and faxing documents
from any cloud-enabled device to a ‘cloud-enabled’ printer. The Company’s fax solutions provide fax operations over evolving intellectual property networks
worldwide. In embedded modems, Conexant provides analog modems which are based on industry standards. These are used in products such as satellite
set-top boxes, point-of-sale terminals, and in various industrial applications.

The Company’s facilities and employees are located primarily in the United States, China, Taiwan, Japan, and South Korea. The Company closed facilities
located in India and Singapore during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Refer to Note 2.

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Fiscal Period

The Company’s fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending on the Friday closest to September 30 each year. In a 52-week year, each fiscal quarter
consists of 13 weeks. The additional week in a 53-week year is added to the fourth quarter, making such quarter consist of 14 weeks.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could
materially differ from those estimates.

Among the significant estimates affecting the consolidated financial statements are those related to the allowance for doubtful accounts, reserves related to
inventories and sales returns, allowances for price adjustments, long-lived assets (including goodwill and intangible assets), deferred income taxes,
environmental remediation reserve, impaired lease charges, uncertain tax positions and other loss contingencies. The Company regularly evaluates its
estimates and assumptions based upon
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Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
 

historical experience and various other factors that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The results of the Company’s estimates and
assumptions form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. To the
extent actual results differ from those estimates our future results of operations may be affected.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events subsequent to September 30, 2016, to assess the need for potential recognition or disclosure in these consolidated
financial statements. Such events were evaluated through December 23, 2016, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Revenue Recognition, Sales Returns and Allowances

Product Sales

The Company recognizes revenue from customers, including distributors, when title and risk of loss have passed to the customer provided that: (i) persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the sales price and terms are fixed and determinable, and (iv) the collection of the
receivable is reasonably assured. These terms are typically met upon shipment of product to the customer. For substantially all sales, revenue is recognized,
net of estimated returns and discounts, at the time the product is shipped.

The majority of the Company’s distributors have limited stock rotation rights, which allow them to rotate up to 10% of product in their inventory two times
per year. The Company recognizes revenue to these distributors upon shipment of product to the distributor, as the stock rotation rights are limited and the
Company believes that it has the ability to reasonably estimate and establish allowances for expected product returns in accordance with accounting guidance
for revenue recognition when right of return exists. The Company has also established allowances for price protection adjustments, rebates and warranty
returns. The estimate of future returns and credits is based on historical sales returns, analysis of credit memo data, and other factors known at the time of
revenue recognition. The Company monitors product returns and potential price adjustments on an ongoing basis.

The Company accrues 100% of potential rebates at the time of sale and does not apply a breakage factor. The Company reverses the accrual for unclaimed
rebate amounts as specific rebate programs contractually end and when they believe unclaimed rebates are no longer subject to payment and will not be paid.

Licensing and Other Sales

The Company sells software licenses and services to its customers under contracts (“software license”). The Company recognizes revenue related to software
licenses when all of the software revenue recognition criteria are met and, if applicable, when vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”), exists to allocate
the total license fee to each element of multiple-element software arrangements, including post-contract customer support. Post-contract support is recognized
ratably over the support period. When a contract contains multiple elements wherein the only undelivered element is post-contract customer support and
VSOE of the fair value of post-contract customer support does not exist, revenue from the entire arrangement is recognized ratably over the support period.
Software royalty revenue is recognized in arrears on a quarterly basis, based upon reports
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Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
 

received from licensees during the period, unless collectability is not reasonably assured, in which case revenue is recognized when payment is received from
the licensee. Development revenue is recognized when services are performed.

Research and Development

The Company’s research and development (“R&D”) expenses consist principally of direct personnel costs to develop software and new semiconductor
solutions, allocated indirect costs of the R&D function, photo mask and other costs for pre-production evaluation and testing of software and new devices,
and design and test tool costs. Research and development costs are charged to expense when incurred.

Shipping and Handling

The Company includes shipping and handling fees billed to customers in net revenues. Amounts incurred by the Company for freight are included in cost of
goods sold.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Short-Term Investments

Investments with original maturities greater than 90 days and remaining maturities of less than one year are normally classified within short-term investments.
In addition, investments with maturities beyond one year may be classified within short-term investments if they are highly liquid in nature and represent the
investment of cash that is available for current operations.

Fair Value of Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities

Accounting literature establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements, and clarifies that
fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants. The literature requires disclosure about how fair value is determined for assets and liabilities and establishes a hierarchy for which these
assets and liabilities must be grouped, based on significant levels of inputs as follows: Level I quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level II quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability; or Level III unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability, such as discounted cash flow models or valuations. The determination of where assets and liabilities fall within this hierarchy
is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company has no assets or liabilities that are subject to fair value
measurement as of September 30, 2016.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments include cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and long-term debt. The
carrying amount of cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses, are considered to be representative of their
respective fair values because of the short-term nature of those instruments. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is estimated based on the current
rates offered for debt of similar remaining maturities and other terms and as of September 30, 2016 is estimated at $15.6 million.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
 

Restricted Cash

The Company’s restricted cash balances consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
September 30,

2016  
Short-term restricted cash securing letters of credit for facility lease   $ —   

    
 

Total short-term   $ —   
    

 

Long-term restricted cash securing letters of credit for facility lease   $ 400 
Cash securing letter of credit for self-insured workers compensation    247 

    
 

Total long-term   $ 647 
    

 

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. The Company uses a standard cost system for purposes of determining cost which
includes materials, labor, overhead and purchased products. Amounts incurred by the Company for freight are classified as a component of cost of goods sold
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company establishes inventory allowances for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory
and the estimated realizable values based on assumptions about forecasted demand, open purchase commitments and market conditions. The Company
assesses the recoverability of inventories through an ongoing review of inventory levels in relation to sales backlog and forecasts, product marketing plans
and product life cycles. When the inventory on hand exceeds the foreseeable demand, the value of inventory that at the time of the review is not expected to
be sold is written down. The amount of the write-down is the excess of historical cost over estimated realizable value. Once established, these write-downs
are considered permanent adjustments to the cost basis of the excess inventory.

The assessment of the recoverability of inventories, and the amounts of any write-downs, are based on currently available information and assumptions about
future demand (generally over 12 months) and market conditions. Demand for the Company’s products may fluctuate significantly over time, and actual
demand and market conditions may be more or less favorable than those projected by management. In the event that actual demand is lower than originally
projected, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Property and Equipment

Additions to property and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and amortization. Depreciation on property and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
lease term or estimated useful life of the asset. The Company uses the following estimated useful lives:
 

Machinery and equipment   2–5 years
Furniture and fixtures   2–10 years
Leasehold improvements   Shorter of lease term or useful life
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
 

Expenditures for routine maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expense as incurred. Major renewals and betterments are capitalized and
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Upon retirement or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is recorded as other income, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets for possible impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at
the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. No impairment on the Company’s long-lived assets was identified during the year ended
September 30, 2016.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

On July 12, 2013, the Company emerged from reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy code (the “reorganization date”). Goodwill represents
the excess of the reorganization value over the fair value of assets and liabilities on the reorganization date.

Completed technology, customer relationships, and backlog are amortized over their estimated useful lives generally using an accelerated method based on
discounted cash flows. The Company evaluates the carrying value of these amortizing intangible assets for possible impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when estimated future cash
flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount.

The Company also has a trade name and trademarks that are assigned indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized,
but are tested for impairment at least annually. During the year ended September 30, 2016, no impairment losses were recorded by the Company.

Foreign Currency Translation and Remeasurement

The Company’s foreign operations are subject to exchange rate fluctuations and foreign currency transaction costs. The functional currency of all of the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign functional currencies are translated into U.S.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
 

dollars at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet dates and income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing
during the period. Assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are remeasured into the functional currency prior to
translation. Foreign currency translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss. The resulting foreign currency translation
adjustments are charged to earnings in the period during which the investment in foreign subsidiaries is sold or liquidated. Gains and losses resulting from
foreign currency transactions are recognized currently in earnings and classified in other income, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is determined in accordance with the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC 740”), Income Taxes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, applying
enacted statutory tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is
more-likely-than-not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The guidance prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute criteria for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon
examination by taxing authorities. The Company will recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax benefit, net,
if any.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed insured limits. The cash and cash equivalent balances located in the
United States of America are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000. The Company’s cash and cash equivalent
balances and short-term investments located in foreign jurisdictions are generally not insured. The Company had cash and cash equivalents and short term
investment balances totaling $1.9 million in foreign locations as of September 30, 2016. The Company limits its exposure to credit loss by placing its cash
and cash equivalents with high-quality financial institutions. The Company has never experienced any losses related to these balances.

The Company’s trade accounts receivable primarily are derived from sales to manufacturers of communications products, consumer products and personal
computers and distributors. Management believes that credit risks on trade accounts receivable are moderated by the diversity of its products and end
customers. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and requires collateral, such as letters of credit and bank
guarantees, whenever deemed necessary.

During the year ended September 30, 2016, the Company terminated seven existing distributor agreements and replaced them with one new distributor. As of
September 30, 2016, there were two customers that accounted for 44% and 12% of accounts receivable.

The Company’s sales are primary originated in the United States. For each of the year ended September 30, 2016, approximately 95% of sales were to
international customers, primarily in Asia. The Company considers all billings to customers located outside the United States, including foreign subsidiaries
of customers that have headquarters in the United States, to be international customers.
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The Company has net assets of approximately $22.3 million as of September 30, 2016 located at its Asian subsidiaries.

Reorganization Fees

The Company closed two facilities during the year ended September 30, 2016, located in India and Singapore. Costs associated with these closures included
professional and legal fees, severance, and fees to settle or terminate existing contracts and were expensed as incurred.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss includes foreign currency translation adjustments from the consolidation of international subsidiaries.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year consolidated financial statements and related notes have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 which provides guidance on how an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services and on
accounting for costs to obtain or fulfill a contract with a customer. The ASU also requires expanded disclosure regarding the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue that is recognized. In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14 which delays the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year. ASU
2014-09 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017 for public entities and after December 15,
2018 for nonpublic entities, and can be adopted either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the
date of adoption, with early application permitted as of the original effective date. Management is currently assessing the adoption and impact of this ASU on
the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12 which provides guidance on how to account for shared-based payment awards where the terms of the award
provide that a performance target that affects vesting could be achieved after the requisite service period. The ASU requires that a performance target that
affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. ASU 2014-12 is effective for annual
periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2015, and early adoption is permitted. Management is currently
assessing the impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15 which provides guidance on management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about
an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued (or within one year after the date that
the financial statements are available to be issued when applicable) and to provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2014-15 is effective for the annual
period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods thereafter. Early application is permitted. Management is
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currently assessing the impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial position and results of operations, however, they do not anticipate that adoption of
this ASU will impact the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11 whose objective is to simplify the subsequent measurement of inventory by using only the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion,
disposal, and transportation. ASU 2015-11 is effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15,
2016. Management is currently assessing the adoption and impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In February 2016, the FASB issued guidance related to the accounting for leases, which among other things, requires a lessee to recognize lease assets and
lease liabilities on the balance sheet for operating leases. This guidance will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. The new guidance is required to be applied using a
modified retrospective approach. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on the consolidated financial position and results
of operations.

In March 2016, the FASB issued guidance that involves several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax
consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. This guidance will be effective for
financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018, however early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on the consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

In June 2016, the FASB issued new guidance requiring measurement and recognition of expected credit losses on certain types of financial instruments. It
also modifies the impairment model for available-for-sale debt securities and provides for a simplified accounting model for purchased financial assets with
credit deterioration since their origination. This guidance will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020,
and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, however early adoption is permitted. The new guidance is required to be
applied using a modified retrospective approach with certain elements being adopted prospectively. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this
guidance will have on the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In August 2016, the FASB issued guidance related to the classification of certain transactions on the statement of cash flows. This guidance will be effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019,
however early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on the consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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3. Inventories

Inventories, net of reserves, are summarized as follows (in thousands):
 

   
September 30,

2016  
Raw materials and work-in-process   $ 11,731 
Finished goods    3,570 

    
 

Gross inventory    15,301 
Less: Reserves    (2,851) 

    
 

Inventory, net   $ 12,450 
    

 

All inventory is held at third party distributors located in Asia.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
September 30,

2016  
Machinery and equipment   $ 3,665 
Furniture and fixtures    277 
Leasehold improvements    2,651 
Construction-in-progress    2 

    
 

   6,595 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization    (4,095) 

    
 

Property and equipment, net   $ 2,500 
    

 

Construction-in-progress as of September 30, 2016 consists of improvements to the Company’s facilities that had not been put into service.

Depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $1.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2016.

At September 30, 2016, the Company had property and equipment, net, of approximately $726,000, held by foreign subsidiaries.

The Company also has a capital lease for equipment. The amount capitalized at the inception of the lease was approximately $154,000. Accumulated
depreciation was $96,000 at September 30, 2016. As of September 30, 2016, the Company’s liability under the capital lease was approximately $26,000.
Payments under the lease are due through June 30, 2017.
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5. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets (in thousands):
 
September 30, 2016   

Useful Life
(years)    

Gross Carrying
Amount    

Accumulated
Amortization  

Book
Value  

Intangible assets subject to amortization        
Complete technology    1-11    $ 48,100   $ (29,844)  $18,256 
Customer relationships    10     6,100    (2,147)   3,953 
Backlog    .75     500    (500)   —   

      
 

    
 

   
 

    $ 54,700   $ (32,491)  $22,209 
      

 
    

 
   

 

Intangible assets not subject to amortization        
Trade name and trademarks     $ 6,000    

      
 

   

    $ 6,000    
      

 

   

Amortization expense was approximately $5.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2016.

The estimated amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and thereafter are as follows (in
thousands):
 

Fiscal year ending     
2017   $ 5,217 
2018    5,225 
2019    4,081 
2020    3,185 
2021    2,406 
Thereafter    2,095 

    
 

  $22,209 
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6. Other Assets and Liabilities

Other Current Assets

Other current assets consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
September 30,

2016  
Prepaid licenses   $ 1,713 
Prepaid expenses    543 
Prepaid taxes, refunds and tax receivables    611 
Other current assets    545 

    
 

  $ 3,412 
    

 

Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
September 30,

2016  
Prepaid licenses   $ 2,780 
Other non-current assets    107 

    
 

  $ 2,887 
    

 

Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
September 30,

2016  
Impaired lease liabilities   $ —   
Accrued licenses    1,617 
Accrued customer rebates    1,228 
Accrued interest    —   
Deferred income    316 
Deferred rent    296 
Income tax payable    284 
Accrued royalties    140 
Environmental remediation reserve (see Note 11)    432 
Legal settlement (see Note 11)    —   
Other    423 

    
 

  $ 4,736 
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Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
September 30,

2016  
Deferred rent   $ 897 
Severance    584 
Environmental remediation reserve (see Note 11)    1,796 
Asset retirement obligation    174 
Workers compensation    295 
Long term disability    366 
Other    —   

    
 

  $ 4,112 
    

 

7. Income Taxes

Income from operations before income tax benefit, net consists of the following components (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
United States   $ 4,726 
Foreign    (620) 

    
 

  $ 4,106 
    

 

The components of the income tax benefit, net are as follows (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
Current:   

Federal   $ (446) 
State and local    (2) 
Foreign    1,084 

    
 

Total current    636 
    

 

Deferred:   
Federal    (58 
State and local    166 
Foreign    (489) 

    
 

Total deferred    (381) 
    

 

Income tax benefit, net   $ 255 
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A reconciliation between the income tax benefit, net and the U.S. federal statutory rate (35%) are as follows (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
U.S. federal statutory tax at 35%   $ (1,437) 
State taxes, net of federal benefit    (1) 
U.S. and foreign income taxes on foreign earnings    (1,453) 
Research and development credits    4,195 
Valuation allowance*    (2,395) 
Uncertain tax positions    1,385 
Other    (39) 

    
 

Income tax benefit, net   $ 255 
    

 

*certain true-ups were netted against the valuation allowance

Major components of the Company’s net deferred income taxes are as follows (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
Deferred tax assets:   

Intangible assets   $ 8,604 
Net operating losses    36,467 
Research and development and investment credits    7,286 
Property    596 
Amortization    13,803 
Other, net    8,582 
Valuation allowance    (66,762) 

    
 

Total deferred tax assets    8,576 
Deferred tax liabilities:   

Other    (288) 
Amortization    (7,974) 
Indefinite life assets    (2,135) 

    
 

Total deferred tax liabilities    (10,397) 
    

 

Deferred tax liabilities, net   $ (1,821) 
    

 

At September 30, 2016, the Company has net realizable federal and California net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $100.7 million and
$5.0 million, respectively (after consideration of related Section 382 impact). The federal and California net operating loss carryforwards generated after the
reorganization date will begin to expire in fiscal year 2033. If the Company experiences a change or shift in ownership in the future, utilization of its net
operating loss (NOL) may be subject to an annual limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. The annual limitation generally is determined by
multiplying the value of the Company’s stock at the time of the ownership change
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(subject to certain adjustments) by the applicable long-term tax-exempt rate. Any limitation may result in expiration of a portion of the NOL carryforward
before utilization. The reorganized company was formed on the reorganization date, and pursuant to an IRC 382 study performed at that time, the tax
attributes (i.e., net operating losses and tax credits) that were generated in the periods prior to the reorganization are limited under IRC 382. For the tax
attributes that were generated in the periods after the reorganization date, these attributes are not subject to the prior IRC 382 limitation, however, the
Company has not performed an additional Section 382 study since the prior reorganization.

Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in assessing the future
realizability of deferred tax assets. Based on the Company’s assessment, it has determined that a valuation allowance is necessary as it is more-likely-than-not
that the deferred tax asset will not be realized in the future.

Accounting guidance further states that forming a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not required is difficult when there is negative evidence such as
cumulative losses in recent years. As a result of the predecessor Company’s cumulative losses, the successor Company concluded that a full valuation
allowance was required as of September 27, 2013, for federal and state purposes. The valuation allowance decreased by approximately $5.4 million during
the year ended September 30, 2016. As of September 30, 2016, the Company concluded that a full valuation allowance is still required for federal and state
purposes.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
Beginning balance   $ 2,946 
Change related to current year tax positions    14 
Change related to prior year tax positions    (633) 
Reductions as a result of lapse of the applicable statute of limitations    (277) 
Foreign exchange rate differences    (9) 

    
 

Ending balance   $ 2,041 
    

 

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting for income taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute criteria for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For
those benefits to be recognized, a tax positions must be more-likely-then-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities.

For the year ended September 30, 2016, unrecognized tax benefits decreased by $0.9 million and the Company recorded approximately $0.9 million of tax
benefit in its income tax provision as a result of a lapse of the applicable statute of limitations and adjustments to tax positions taken in prior periods.
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As of September 30, 2016, the Company had cumulatively accrued approximately $1.5 million, for estimated interest and penalties related to uncertain tax
positions, which is included in income tax liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company records estimated interest and penalties
related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax benefit, net which totaled approximately $161,000 for the year ended September 30, 2016.

As of September 30, 2016, there was no unrecognized tax benefits that may be changed within the next 12 months due to the lapse of the applicable statute of
limitations.

As of September 30, 2016, the following tax returns remain open to examination: U.S. federal, 2013 through 2015; U.S. states, 2013 through 2015; India,
2002 through 2015; other significant foreign jurisdictions, generally 2005 through 2015.

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes associated with the repatriation of earnings of foreign subsidiaries were not provided for on a cumulative
total of $19.7 million cumulative undistributed statutory earnings for certain foreign subsidiaries as of September 30, 2016. The Company intends to reinvest
these earnings indefinitely in its foreign subsidiaries. If these earnings were distributed to the United States in the form of dividends or otherwise, or if the
shares of the relevant foreign subsidiaries were sold or otherwise transferred, the Company would be subject to additional U.S. income taxes (subject to an
adjustment for foreign tax credits) and foreign withholding taxes.

8. Term Loan

On July 12, 2013, the Company entered into a credit agreement (“Term Loan”) with QP SFM Capital Holdings, Ltd. The amount of the Term Loan is
$15 million, and the Company drew the entire amount on July 12, 2013, as part of the bankruptcy proceedings.

The Term Loan had an original maturity date of July 21, 2016. In November 2015, the Company amended the agreement and extended the maturity date to
July 12, 2018. The term loan has an interest payment based on a 10% annual coupon rate. All of the principal will be due at the Term Loan’s maturity date.
Interest expense recorded on the Term Loan was $1.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2016. There are no financial covenants associated with the
Term Loan.

9. Stockholder’s Equity

The Company’s authorized capital consists of 1,000,000 shares of common stock at a par value of $0.01 per share.

During the year ended October 3, 2014, the Company implemented the 2013 Incentive Compensation Plan (“the Plan”), which provides for awards of SARs
for eligible participants. 7,500,000 SARs were reserved for issuance under the Plan. Each SAR is worth 1/50th of a share of common stock. A SAR typically
vests over five years, has a term of seven years and is exercisable in two circumstances, a sale event or a qualified registration (a “qualified event”). In a sale
event, participants receive a cash payment for the intrinsic value of vested SARs on the date of the sale event. Remaining unvested SARs on the date of the
sale event vest over the next year and are paid out upon vesting. In a qualified registration, vested SARs convert to an option to purchase one share of
Company common stock at the ratio of 50 SARs to one share of common stock. Due to the limitations on exercisability, stock compensation expense will not
be recorded until a qualified event occurs.
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Under the Plan, upon termination for cause, all awards, whether vested or not are immediately expired. Upon termination for reasons other than cause, the
vested awards remain outstanding and shall remain and become exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

A summary of SAR activity is a follows (in thousands):
 

   Units  
Outstanding, October 2, 2015    4,835 
Granted    2,380 
Forfeited    (2,000) 

    
 

Outstanding, September 30, 2016    5,215 
    

 

There were 1,828,000 SARs vested as of September 30, 2016.

The Company incurred $1.2 million in compensation expense for the year ended September 30, 2016 related to vested SARS that the Company voluntarily
repurchased, which is included in selling, general and administrative expenses and research and development expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors a domestic 401(k) plan that allows eligible U.S. employees to contribute a portion of their compensation, on a pre-tax or after-tax
basis, subject to annual limits. The Company may match employee contributions in whole or in part up to specified levels, and the Company may make an
additional discretionary contribution at fiscal year-end, based on the Company’s performance. The Company contributions are made in cash, and are allocated
based on the employee’s current investment elections. The Plan is available to all employees over 18 years of age. Employees may elect to contribute from
0% to 35% of their base salary limited to the amount allowed by tax laws ($18,000 in 2016 and 2015). Matching contributions by the Company for the year
ended September 30, 2016, were approximately $172,000.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company occupies certain facilities, sales offices, and has various equipment agreements under operating lease arrangements. Leases expire at various
dates through fiscal year 2021. A summary of non-cancelable commitments under operating leases at September 30, 2016 is as follows (in thousands):
 

Fiscal years ending     
2017   $1,981 
2018    1,823 
2019    1,606 
2020    1,470 
2021    280 

    
 

  $7,160 
    

 

 
24



Table of Contents

Conexant Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
 

Rent expense was approximately $1.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2016

Purchase Commitments

The Company also has purchase commitments for inventory in production totaling $2.5 million and a liability under license contracts for electronic design
tools of approximately $1.6 million payable within one year as of September 30, 2016.

Environmental Remediation

The Company has responsibility for groundwater remediation on property it sold in 2010. It also has responsibility, under the terms of the sale agreement to
assist in soil remediation until September 2020. As of September 30, 2016, the Company has accrued $2.2 million of reserves, for groundwater and soil
remediation, $1.8 million of which is classified in long-term other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The accrual primarily
represents the costs of a remediation program recommended to the Company by a third-party environmental remediation provider. The recommended
program uses a combination of remediation methods including electromagnetic resistance heating to treat the most highly contaminated areas supplemented
by injection of biological agents to treat less contaminated areas. The reserve for remediation costs is recorded at its undiscounted value because the amount
and timing of cash payments are not fixed or reliably determinable.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company has recorded a liability for asset retirement obligations related to facility leases of approximately $0.2 million as of September 30, 2016.

Insurance

The Company is self-insured for medical expense up to a stop loss amount of $150,000 per claim and an aggregate plan stop-loss amount of $1.0 million. The
Company is self-insured for dental expenses up to $1,500 per claim. The Company uses an actuary to calculate medical and dental expenses incurred but not
reported (IBNR) and records these amounts as its liability for future claims. These amounts were $123,000 for medical expenses and $13,000 for dental
expenses as of September 30, 2016.

The Company is also self-insured for two and four worker’s compensation claims which were not discharged in reorganization as of September 30, 2016. The
Company uses an actuary to calculate the liability related to outstanding claims. The amounts reserved for these claims were approximately $0.4 million as of
September 30, 2016, which are included in accrued compensation and benefits and other long-term liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.

Statutory Severance

The Company is subject to foreign statutory labor laws and regulations that require the Company to pay a mandatory severance when employees are
involuntarily terminated, retire or voluntarily resign. The Company has accrued $0.8 million as of September 30, 2016, in accrued compensation and benefits
and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Legal Matters

Certain claims have been asserted against the Company, including claims alleging the use of the intellectual property rights of others in certain of the
Company’s products. The resolution of these matters may entail the negotiation of a license agreement, a settlement, or the adjudication of such claims
through arbitration or litigation. Due to the preliminary stage of these proceedings, it is not currently possible to assess the outcome of the lawsuits, nor is it
possible to calculate a reasonable estimate of any resulting liabilities. As a result, the Company cannot assess the impact, if any, of these proceedings on its
consolidated financial statements. Some of the lawsuits, claims or proceedings may be disposed of unfavorably for the Company. In particular, many
intellectual property disputes have a risk of injunctive relief and there can be no assurance that a license will be granted in such a case. Injunctive relief could
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Additionally, any significant litigation award or settlement
payment could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Based on its evaluation of matters that are
pending or asserted management believes that the disposition of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition,
results of operations, or cash flows.

In February 2015, a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission alleging patent infringement in relation to one of the Company’s
products. In January 2016, the two parties to this claim determined they would resolve the pending litigation and entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU”) whereby the Company would pay a one-time fee of $850,000 for a license to the patents in question as well as other certain rights
and covenants. This settlement amount was accrued as of October 2, 2015 and is reflected in other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The final settlement agreement for this matter was executed in February 2016 and the final payment was made in March 2016.

Guarantees and Indemnities

The Company has made guarantees and indemnities, under which it may be required to make payments to a guaranteed or indemnified party, in relation to
certain transactions. In connection with the Company’s spin-off from Rockwell International Corporation (“Rockwell”) in 1998, the Company assumed
responsibility for all contingent liabilities and then-current and future litigation (including environmental matters) against Rockwell or its subsidiaries in
respect of the operations of the semiconductor systems business of Rockwell. In connection with the sales of its products, the Company provides intellectual
property indemnities to its customers. In connection with certain facility leases, the Company has indemnified its lessors for certain claims arising from the
facility or the lease. The Company also has employment agreements with certain key employees. Under certain circumstances, these agreements may require
severance payments and/or continuation of certain insurance benefits. The Company indemnifies its directors and officers to the maximum extent permitted
under the laws of the State of Delaware.

The durations of the Company’s guarantees and indemnities vary, and in many cases are indefinite. The guarantees and indemnities to customers in
connection with product sales generally are subject to limits based upon the amount of the related product sales. The majority of other guarantees and
indemnities do not provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments the Company could be obligated to make. The Company has not
recorded any liability for these guarantees and indemnities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as they are not estimated to be material. Product
warranty costs and the Company’s accrual for such costs are not significant.
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Letters of Credit

The Company has other outstanding letters of credit collateralized by restricted cash aggregating $0.6 million as of September 30, 2016, to secure various
long-term operating leases and the self-insured worker’s compensation plan.

12. Related-Party Transactions

Upon reorganization, the Company became affiliated with Lakestar Semi, Inc. and QP SFM Capital Holdings, Ltd.

The Company incurred interest expense of $1.5 million to QP SFM Capital Holdings, Ltd. related to the Term Loan during the year ended September 30,
2016.

No dividends were paid during the year ended September 30, 2016.

13. Other Income, Net

Other income, net consists of the following (in thousands):
 

   

Year Ended
September 30,

2016  
Investment and interest income   $ 172 
Gain (loss) on sale of investments    455 
Exchange rate gains    113 
Income on sale of energy credits    678 
Other income    532 

    
 

Other income, net   $ 1,950 
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Exhibit 99.2

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

CNXT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

 
   

June 30,
2017   

September 30,
2016  

ASSETS    
Current Assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 59,442  $ 50,968 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $10 and $12 at June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively    13,399   11,849 
Inventories, net    18,636   12,450 
Other current assets    3,373   3,412 

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    94,850   78,679 
Property and equipment, net    2,377   2,500 
Goodwill    136   136 
Intangible assets, net    24,296   28,209 
Restricted cash, less current portion    389   647 
Other assets    2,416   2,887 

    
 

   
 

Total assets   $124,464  $ 113,058 
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY    
Current Liabilities:    

Accounts payable   $ 10,303  $ 6,656 
Accrued compensation and benefits    3,425   3,694 
Other current liabilities    5,395   4,736 

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    19,123   15,086 
Long-term liabilities:    
Long-term debt    15,000   15,000 
Deferred tax liabilities, net    1,814   1,821 
Income tax liabilities    1,631   1,440 
Accrued licenses    1,600   2,817 
Other liabilities    3,776   4,112 

    
 

   
 

Total liabilities    42,944   40,276 
Stockholder’s Equity:    

Common stock:    
$0.01 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding at June 30, 2017; $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares

authorized, issued and outstanding at September 30, 2016    —     10 
Additional paid-in capital    95,000   94,990 
Accumulated deficit    (12,199)   (21,163) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (1,281)   (1,055) 

    
 

   
 

Total stockholder’s equity    81,520   72,782 
    

 
   

 

Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity   $124,464  $ 113,058 
    

 

   

 

See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CNXT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

 
   Nine Months Ended  
   June 30,   July 1,  
   2017   2016  
Net revenue   $82,454  $75,841 
Cost of revenue    29,266   28,140 

    
 

   
 

Gross margin    53,188   47,701 
    

 
   

 

Operating expenses:    
Research and development    19,451   20,339 
Selling, general, and administrative    18,711   17,118 
Acquired intangibles amortization    3,912   4,425 
Restructuring costs    420   1,785 
Litigation settlement charges    —     2,999 

    
 

   
 

Total operating expenses    42,494   46,666 
    

 
   

 

Operating income    10,694   1,035 
Interest and other income/(expense), net    (1,016)   158 

    
 

   
 

Income before provision for income taxes    9,678   1,193 
Provision for income taxes    714   604 

    
 

   
 

Net income   $ 8,964  $ 589 
    

 

   

 

See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CNXT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

 
   Nine Months Ended  
   June 30,   July 1,  
   2017   2016  
Cash flows from operating activities:    
Net income   $ 8,964  $ 589 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash equivalents provided by/(used in) operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    723   782 
Intangibles amortization    3,913   4,425 
Provision for (reversal of) bad debt, net    (3)   4 
Provision for inventory, net    863   301 
Deferred income taxes    261   361 
Loss on property and equipment    37   (7) 
Stock based compensation    
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Restricted cash    258   132 
Accounts receivable, net    (1,547)   (9,575) 
Inventories    (7,049)   342 
Other assets    640   (2,972) 
Accounts payable    3,647   1,332 
Accrued compensation and benefits    (269)   135 
Other liabilities    (2,248)   1,269 
Income taxes    1,264   159 

    
 

   
 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by/(used in) operating activities    9,454   (2,723) 
    

 
   

 

Cash flows from investing activities    
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments    —     2,725 
Proceeds from sale of investments    —     455 
Purchases of property and equipment    (720)   (386) 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets    —     30 

    
 

   
 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by/(used in) investing activities    (720)   2,824 
Cash flows from financing activities    
Payments on capital leases    (26)   (25) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in financing activities    (26)   (25) 
    

 
   

 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    (234)   (322) 
    

 
   

 

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    8,474   (246) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    50,968   41,411 

    
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $59,442  $41,165 
    

 

   

 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information    
Cash paid for taxes   $ 168  $ 107 
Cash paid for interest   $ 1,138  $ 1,142 

See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CNXT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016 and as of June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

(unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

CNXT Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries, or the Company, was formerly known as Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries. On March 17, 2017 the Company
was formed for the purpose of creating a holding company to separate the key operating assets of Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries from the
non-operating, inactive assets. Under that plan, on March 18, 2017, Lakestar Semi, Inc. contributed 100% of the common stock of Conexant System, Inc. to
the Company in exchange for 100% of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. On March 20, 2017, Conexant Systems, Inc. was converted to a
Delaware limited liability company and changed its name to Conexant Systems LLC. On March 21, 2017, Conexant Systems LLC transferred its
non-operating, inactive assets through the distribution of 100% of its ownership interests in Conexant, Inc. and Conexant Systems Private Ltd. (India) to the
Company. On July 25, 2017, Synaptics Incorporated, or Synaptics, acquired substantially all of the key operating assets of CNXT Holding, Inc. and
subsidiaries through its acquisition of Conexant Systems LLC and subsidiaries, which represented the active subsidiaries of CNXT Holdings, Inc. See
footnote 12 “Subsequent Events” for additional information on the sale of Conexant Systems LLC to Synaptics.

The Company’s fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending on the Friday closest to September 30 each year. The fiscal periods presented in this exhibit
were 39-week periods for the nine months ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016. For simplicity, the accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial
statements have been shown as ending on calendar quarter end dates as of and for all periods presented, unless otherwise indicated.

There have been no changes to our significant accounting policies described in our audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2016, that
have had a material impact on our interim condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period balances to conform to the current period presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could
materially differ from those estimates.

Among the significant estimates affecting the consolidated financial statements are those related to the allowance for doubtful accounts, reserves related to
inventories and sales returns, allowances for price adjustments, long-lived assets (including goodwill and intangible assets), deferred income taxes,
environmental remediation reserve, impaired lease charges, uncertain tax positions and other loss contingencies. The Company regularly evaluates its
estimates and assumptions based upon historical experience and various other factors that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The results of
the Company’s estimates and assumptions form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. To the extent actual results differ from those estimates our future results of operations may be affected.

Foreign Currency Translation and Remeasurement

The Company’s foreign operations are subject to exchange rate fluctuations and foreign currency transaction costs. The functional currency of all of the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign functional currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the
rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet dates and income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period.
Assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are remeasured into the functional currency prior to translation. Foreign
currency translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss. The resulting foreign currency translation adjustments are charged to
earnings in the period during which the investment in foreign subsidiaries is sold or liquidated. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions
are recognized currently in earnings.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 which provides guidance on how an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services and on
accounting for costs to obtain or fulfill a contract with a customer. The ASU also requires expanded disclosure regarding the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue that is recognized. In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14 which delays the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year. ASU
2014-09 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017 for public entities and after December 15,
2018 for nonpublic entities, and can be adopted either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the
date of adoption, with early application permitted as of the original effective date. Management is currently assessing the adoption and impact of this ASU on
the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12 which provides guidance on how to account for shared-based payment awards where the terms of the award
provide that a performance target that affects vesting could be achieved after the requisite service period. The ASU requires that a performance target that
affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. ASU 2014-12 is effective for annual
periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2015, and early adoption is permitted. Management is currently
assessing the adoption and impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15 which provides guidance on management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about
an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued (or within one year after the date that
the financial statements are available to be issued when applicable) and to provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2014-15 is effective for the annual
period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods thereafter. Early application is permitted. Management is currently
assessing the impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial position and results of operations, however, they do not anticipate that adoption of this ASU
will impact the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11 whose objective is to simplify the subsequent measurement of inventory by using only the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion,
disposal, and transportation. ASU 2015-11 is effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15,
2016. Management is currently assessing the adoption and impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In February 2016, the FASB issued guidance related to the accounting for leases, which among other things, requires a lessee to recognize lease assets and
lease liabilities on the balance sheet for operating leases. This guidance will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. The new guidance is required to be applied using a
modified retrospective approach. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on the consolidated financial position and results
of operations.

In March 2016, the FASB issued guidance that involves several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax
consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. This guidance will be effective for
financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018, however early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on the consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

In June 2016, the FASB issued new guidance requiring measurement and recognition of expected credit losses on certain types of financial instruments. It
also modifies the impairment model for available-for-sale debt securities and provides for a simplified accounting model for purchased financial assets with
credit deterioration since their origination. This guidance will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020,
and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, however early adoption is permitted. The new guidance is required to be
applied using a modified retrospective approach with certain elements being adopted prospectively. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this
guidance will have on the consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In August 2016, the FASB issued guidance related to the classification of certain transactions on the statement of cash flows. This guidance will be effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019,
however early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on the consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

2. Revenue Recognition

Product Sales

The Company recognizes revenue from customers, including distributors, when title and risk of loss have passed to the customer provided that: (i) persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the sales price and terms are fixed and determinable, and (iv) the collection of the
receivable is reasonably assured. These terms are typically met upon shipment of product to the customer. For substantially all sales, revenue is recognized,
net of estimated returns and discounts, at the time the product is shipped.

The majority of the Company’s distributors have limited stock rotation rights, which allow them to rotate up to 10% of product in their inventory two times
per year. The Company recognizes revenue to these distributors upon shipment of product to the distributor, as the stock
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rotation rights are limited and the Company believes that it has the ability to reasonably estimate and establish allowances for expected product returns in
accordance with accounting guidance for revenue recognition when right of return exists. The Company has also established allowances for price protection
adjustments, rebates and warranty returns. The estimate of future returns and credits is based on historical sales returns, analysis of credit memo data, and
other factors known at the time of revenue recognition. The Company monitors product returns and potential price adjustments on an ongoing basis.

The Company accrues 100% of potential rebates at the time of sale and does not apply a breakage factor. The Company reverses the accrual for unclaimed
rebate amounts as specific rebate programs contractually end and when they believe unclaimed rebates are no longer subject to payment and will not be paid.

Licensing and Other Sales

The Company sells software licenses and services to its customers under contracts (“software license”). The Company recognizes revenue related to software
licenses when all of the software revenue recognition criteria are met and, if applicable, when vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”), exists to allocate
the total license fee to each element of multiple-element software arrangements, including post-contract customer support. Post-contract support is recognized
ratably over the support period. When a contract contains multiple elements wherein the only undelivered element is post-contract customer support and
VSOE of the fair value of post-contract customer support does not exist, revenue from the entire arrangement is recognized ratably over the support period.
Software royalty revenue is recognized in arrears on a quarterly basis, based upon reports received from licensees during the period, unless collectability is
not reasonably assured, in which case revenue is recognized when payment is received from the licensee. Development revenue is recognized when services
are performed.

3. Inventories

Inventories, net of reserves, are summarized as follows (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2017    
September 30,

2016  
Raw materials and work-in-process   $12,319   $ 11,731 
Finished goods    9,214    3,570 

    
 

    
 

Gross Inventory    21,533    15,301 
Less: Reserves    (2,897)    (2,851) 

    
 

    
 

Inventory, net   $18,636   $ 12,450 
    

 

    

 

All inventory is held at third party distributors located in Asia.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2017    
September 30,

2016  
Machinery and equipment   $ 3,929   $ 3,665 
Furniture and fixtures    218    277 
Leasehold improvements    2,731    2,651 
Construction-in-progress    10    2 

    
 

    
 

   6,888    6,595 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization    (4,511)    (4,095) 

    
 

    
 

Property and equipment, net   $ 2,377   $ 2,500 
    

 

    

 

For the nine months ended June 30, 2017, and July 1, 2016, depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $723,000 and $782,000, respectively.

At June 30, 2017, and September 30, 2016, the Company had property and equipment, net, of approximately $671,000 and $726,000, respectively, held by
foreign subsidiaries.
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As of June 30, 2017 no further payment obligations existed under capital leases.
 

   
June 30,

2017    
September 30,

2016  
Capitalized at inception   $154,000   $ 154,000 
Accumulated depreciation    154,000    96,000 
Liablity remaining under capital lease    —      26,000 

5. Intangible Assets

Completed technology, customer relationships, and backlog are amortized over their estimated useful lives generally using an accelerated method based on
discounted cash flows. The Company evaluates the carrying value of these amortizing intangible assets for possible impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when estimated future cash
flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount.

The Company also has a trade name and trademarks that are assigned indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized,
but are tested for impairment at least annually. During the nine months ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016, no impairment losses were recorded by the
Company.

Intangible assets (in thousands):
 

June 30, 2017   
Useful

Life (yrs)   

Gross
Carrying
Amount    

Accumulated
Amortization   

Book
Value  

Intangible assets subject to amortization:         
Complete technology    1-11   $48,100   $ (33,132)   $14,968 
Customer relationships    10    6,100    (2,772)    3,328 
Backlog    .75    500    (500)    —   

      
 

    
 

    
 

    $54,700   $ (36,404)   $18,296 
      

 

    

 

    

 

Intangible assets not subject to amortization:         
Trade name and trademarks     $ 6,000     

      
 

    

    $ 6,000     
      

 
    

September 30, 2016   
Useful

Life (yrs)   

Gross
Carrying
Amount    

Accumulated
Amortization   

Book
Value  

Intangible assets subject to amortization:         
Complete technology    1-11   $48,100   $ (29,844)   $18,256 
Customer relationships    10    6,100    (2,147)    3,953 
Backlog    .75    500    (500)    —   

      
 

    
 

    
 

    $54,700   $ (32,491)   $22,209 
      

 

    

 

    

 

Intangible assets not subject to amortization:         
Trade name and trademarks     $ 6,000     

      
 

    

    $ 6,000     
      

 
    

Amortization expense was approximately $3,913,000 and $4,425,000 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2017, and July 1, 2016, respectively.
 

7



6. Other Assets and Liabilities

Other Current Assets

Other current assets consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2017    
September 30,

2016  
Prepaid licenses    1,874    1,713 
Other prepaid expenses    406    543 
Other    1,093    1,156 

    
 

    
 

  $3,373   $ 3,412 
    

 

    

 

Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2017    
September 30,

2016  
Prepaid licenses    1,881    2,780 
Other non-current assets    535    107 

    
 

    
 

  $2,416   $ 2,887 
    

 

    

 

Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2017    
September 30,

2016  
Accrued licenses   $2,033   $ 1,617 
Accrued customer rebates    1,436    1,228 
Deferred income    64    316 
Deferred rent    312    296 
Income tax payable    324    284 
Accrued royalties    111    140 
Environmental remediation reserve    482    432 
Legal settlement    320    —   
Other    313    423 

    
 

    
 

  $5,395   $ 4,736 
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Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2017    
September 30,

2016  
Deferred rent   $ 702   $ 897 
Severance    610    584 
Environmental remediation reserve    1,733    1,796 
Asset retirement obligation    103    174 
Workers compensation    261    295 
Long term disability    367    366 

    
 

    
 

  $3,776   $ 4,112 
    

 

    

 

7. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. The provision for income taxes recorded in interim periods is recorded by
applying the estimated annual effective tax rate to year-to-date income before provision for income taxes, excluding the effects of significant unusual or
infrequently occurring discrete items. The tax effects of discrete items are recorded in the same period that the related discrete items are reported and results
in a difference between the actual effective tax rate and the estimated annual effective tax rate.

The provision for income taxes of $714,000 and $604,000 for the nine months ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016, respectively, represented estimated
federal, foreign, and state income taxes. The effective tax rate for the nine months ended June 30, 2017 diverged from the combined U.S. federal and state
statutory tax rate primarily because of the release of valuation allowances and research credits, partially offset by higher tax rates on certain foreign income
and foreign withholding taxes. The effective tax rate for the nine months ended July 1, 2016 diverged from the combined U.S. federal and state statutory tax
rate, primarily because of an increase in the valuation allowance, higher tax rates on certain foreign income, and foreign withholding taxes, partially offset by
research credits.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits for the nine months ended June 30, 2017(in thousands):
 

Balance at September 30, 2016   $2,041 
Change related to prior year tax positions    (40) 

    
 

Balance at June 30, 2017   $2,001 
    

 

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting for income taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute criteria for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For
those benefits to be recognized, a tax positions must be more-likely-then-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. For the nine months
ended June 30, 2017, unrecognized tax benefits decreased by $40,000, which was recorded as a reduction of tax expense in its income tax provision as a
result of adjustments to tax positions taken in prior periods. As of June 30, 2017, the Company had cumulatively accrued approximately $1.5 million, for
estimated interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions, which is included in income tax liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheets. The Company records estimated interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense.

As of June 30, 2017, there was no unrecognized tax benefits that may be changed within the next 12 months due to the lapse of the applicable statute of
limitations.

The Company’s major tax jurisdiction is the United States and federal tax returns for 2014 through 2016 remain open to examination.
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8. Term Loan

On July 12, 2013, the Company entered into a credit agreement (“Term Loan”) with QP SFM Capital Holdings, Ltd. The amount of the Term Loan is
$15 million, and the Company drew the entire amount on July 12, 2013, as part of the bankruptcy proceedings.

The Term Loan had an original maturity date of July 21, 2016. In November 2015, the Company amended the agreement and extended the maturity date to
July 12, 2018. The term loan has an interest payment based on a 10% annual coupon rate. All of the principal will be due at the Term Loan’s maturity date.
Interest expense recorded on the Term Loan for the nine months ended June 30, 2017, and July 1, 2016, was $1.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively. There
are no financial covenants associated with the Term Loan. See Note 12 Subsequent Events.

9. Stock Appreciation Rights

During the year ended October 3, 2014, the Company implemented the 2013 Incentive Compensation Plan (“the Plan”), which provides for awards of SARs
for eligible participants. 7,500,000 SARs were reserved for issuance under the Plan. Each SAR is worth 1/50th of a share of common stock. A SAR typically
vests over five years, has a term of seven years and is exercisable in two circumstances, a sale event or a qualified registration (a “qualified event”). In a sale
event, participants receive a cash payment for the intrinsic value of vested SARs on the date of the sale event. Remaining unvested SARs on the date of the
sale event vest over the next year and are paid out upon vesting. In a qualified registration, vested SARs convert to an option to purchase one share of
Company common stock at the ratio of 50 SARs to one share of common stock. Due to the limitations on exercisability, stock compensation expense will not
be recorded until a qualified event occurs.

Under the Plan, upon termination for cause, all awards, whether vested or not are immediately expired. Upon termination for reasons other than cause, the
vested awards remain outstanding and shall remain and become exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

A summary of SAR activity is as follows (in thousands):
 

   Units  
Outstanding, October 2, 2015    4,835 
Granted    2,380 
Forfeited    (2,000) 

    
 

Outstanding, September 30, 2016    5,215 
    

 

   Units  
Outstanding, September 30, 2016    5,215 
Granted    —   
Forfeited    (330) 

    
 

Outstanding, June 30, 2017    4,885 
    

 

There were 1,813,000 and 1,828,000 SARs vested as of June 30, 2017, and September 30, 2016, respectively.

Stock compensation expense for the nine months ended June 30, 2017, and July 1, 2016, was $0.0 million and $0 million, respectively. The Company
incurred $1.2 million in compensation expense for the nine months ended July 1, 2016 related to vested SARS that the Company voluntarily repurchased,
which is included in selling, general and administrative expenses and research and development expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income.
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10. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company occupies certain facilities, sales offices, and has various equipment agreements under operating lease arrangements. Leases expire at various
dates through fiscal year 2021. A summary of non-cancelable commitments under operating leases at June 30, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):
 

Fiscal years ending:   
2017   $ 550 
2018    2,170 
2019    1,664 
2020    1,470 
2021    280 

    
 

  $6,134 
    

 

Rent expense was approximately $1.3 million and $1.4 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2017, and July 1, 2016.

Purchase Commitments

The Company also has purchase commitments for inventory in production totaling $7.5 million and a liability under license contracts for electronic design
tools of approximately $2.0 million payable within one year as of June 30, 2017.

Environmental Remediation

The Company has responsibility for groundwater remediation on property it sold in 2010. It also has responsibility, under the terms of the sale agreement to
assist in soil remediation until September 2020. As of June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016, the Company has accrued $2.2 million and $2.2 million,
respectively, of reserves for groundwater and soil remediation. As of June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016, $1.7 million and $1.8 million, respectively, is
classified in long-term other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The accrual primarily represents the costs of a remediation
program recommended to the Company by a third-party environmental remediation provider. The recommended program uses a combination of remediation
methods including electromagnetic resistance heating to treat the most highly contaminated areas supplemented by injection of biological agents to treat less
contaminated areas. The reserve for remediation costs is recorded at its undiscounted value because the amount and timing of cash payments are not fixed or
reliably determinable.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company has recorded a liability for asset retirement obligations related to facility leases of approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million as of June 30,
2017 and September 30, 2016, respectively.

Insurance

The Company is self-insured for medical expense up to a stop loss amount of $150,000 per claim and an aggregate plan stop-loss amount of $1.0 million. The
Company is self-insured for dental expenses up to $1,500 per claim. The Company uses an actuary to calculate medical and dental expenses incurred but not
reported (IBNR) and records these amounts as its liability for future claims. These amounts were $123,000 for medical expenses and $13,000 for dental
expenses as of June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016.

The Company is also self-insured for two worker’s compensation claims which were not discharged in reorganization. The Company uses an actuary to
calculate the liability related to outstanding claims. The amounts reserved for these claims were approximately $0.4 million as of June 30, 2017 and
September 30, 2016, which are included in accrued compensation and benefits and other long-term liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.

Statutory Severance

The Company is subject to foreign statutory labor laws and regulations that require the Company to pay a mandatory severance when employees are
involuntarily terminated, retire or voluntarily resign. The Company has accrued $0.6 million and $0.8 million as of June 30, 2017, and September 30, 2016,
respectively, in accrued compensation and benefits and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Legal Matters

The Company is party to various litigation matters and claims arising from time to time in the ordinary course of business. While the result of such matters
cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company believe that the final outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Guarantees and Indemnities

The Company has made guarantees and indemnities, under which it may be required to make payments to a guaranteed or indemnified party, in relation to
certain transactions. In connection with the Company’s spin-off from Rockwell International Corporation (“Rockwell”) in 1998, the Company assumed
responsibility for all contingent liabilities and then-current and future litigation (including environmental matters) against Rockwell or its subsidiaries in
respect of the operations of the semiconductor systems business of Rockwell. In connection with the sales of its products, the Company provides intellectual
property indemnities to its customers. In connection with certain facility leases, the Company has indemnified its lessors for certain claims arising from the
facility or the lease. The Company also has employment agreements with certain key employees. Under certain circumstances, these agreements may require
severance payments and/or continuation of certain insurance benefits. The Company indemnifies its directors and officers to the maximum extent permitted
under the laws of the State of Delaware.

The durations of the Company’s guarantees and indemnities vary, and in many cases are indefinite. The guarantees and indemnities to customers in
connection with product sales generally are subject to limits based upon the amount of the related product sales. The majority of other guarantees and
indemnities do not provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments the Company could be obligated to make. The Company has not
recorded any liability for these guarantees and indemnities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as they are not estimated to be material. Product
warranty costs and the Company’s accrual for such costs are not significant.

Letters of Credit

The Company has other outstanding letters of credit collateralized by restricted cash aggregating $0.4 million and $0.6 million as of June 30, 2017, and
September 30, 2016, respectively, to secure various long-term operating leases and the self-insured worker’s compensation plan.

11. Related-Party Transactions

Upon reorganization, the Company became affiliated with Lakestar Semi, Inc. and QP SFM Capital Holdings, Ltd.

The Company incurred interest expense to QP SFM Capital Holdings, Ltd. related to the $15.0 million Term Loan during the nine months ended June 30,
2017 and July 1, 2016, of $1.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

No dividends were paid during the nine months ended June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016.

12. Subsequent Events

On June 11, 2017, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement to sell all of the outstanding limited liability company interests of Conexant
Systems, LLC to Synaptics. On July 25, 2017, or the Closing Date, all of the limited liability interests of Conexant Systems LLC were sold for a selling price
of (i) $305.8 million in cash (on a cash-free, debt-free basis) and (ii) 726,666 shares of Synaptics common stock, with $16.8 million of the purchase price held
in escrow to secure certain of the Company’s indemnification obligations under the purchase agreement. Immediately prior to the Closing Date, on July 24,
2017, Conexant Systems LLC distributed $56.0 million as a dividend to the Company. On the Closing Date, the $15.0 million Term Loan and accrued interest
from QP SFM Capital Holdings, Ltd. was paid in full as part of the closing funds flow. On August 24, 2017, Closing Date vested SARs valued at $8.6 million
were paid to the SARs holders. The outstanding unvested SARs as of the Closing Date continue to vest under their original vesting schedule and any
outstanding unvested SARs not vested as of July 25, 2018, will vest at that time.
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Exhibit 99.3

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

On June 12, 2017, Synaptics Incorporated (“Synaptics”) announced that it had entered into a stock purchase agreement providing for the acquisition of
all of the outstanding limited liability company interests of Conexant Systems, LLC (“Conexant”), resulting in Conexant becoming a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Synaptics (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was effective as of July 25, 2017 (“Closing Date”).

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet and statement of income are presented to give effect to the acquisition of all of
the outstanding limited liability company interests of Conexant for a purchase price of (i) $305.8 million in cash (on a cash-free, debt-free basis) and (ii)
726,666 shares of our common stock (the “Stock Consideration”), with $16.8 million of the purchase price held in escrow to secure the Seller Parties’
indemnification obligations under the purchase agreement, as well as the $525 million aggregate principal amount of 0.50% Convertible Senior Notes due in
2022 which we issued in a private placement transaction to finance the acquisition. The Stock Consideration was issued at closing in an exempt private
placement. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income are hereafter
collectedly referred to as the “Pro Forma Financial Statements.”

The Pro Forma Financial Statements should be read together with the historical financial statements and related notes, as follows:
 

 •  accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements;
 

 •  audited historical consolidated financial statements of Synaptics as of and for the year ended June 24, 2017, included in Synaptics’ Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended June 24, 2017;

 

 
•  unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of CNXT Holdings, Inc., formerly Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries, as of June 30, 2017

and September 30, 2016 and the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the nine-month periods ended
June 30, 2017 and July 1, 2016, and the notes related thereto; and

 

 •  audited historical consolidated financial statements of Conexant Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016
and the related notes thereto, included in this Form 8-K/A.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet is presented as if the Acquisition had occurred on June 24, 2017. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of income combines the results of operations of Synaptics and Conexant for the twelve months ended June 24, 2017 and
June 30, 2017, respectively, as if the Acquisition had occurred on the first day of the related twelve month periods.

The pro forma information was prepared based on the historical consolidated financial statements of Synaptics and Conexant after giving effect to the
Acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting and debt raised, and after applying the assumptions, reclassifications and adjustments described in the
accompanying notes based on current intentions and expectations relating to the combined business.

The Pro Forma Financial Statements have been prepared for illustrative purposes only and are not intended to represent or be indicative of the
consolidated financial position or results of operations in future periods or the results that actually would have been achieved had Synaptics and Conexant
been a combined company as of and for the respective periods presented. The Pro Forma Financial Statements do not reflect any operating efficiencies, post-
Acquisition synergies and/or cost savings that we may achieve with respect to the combined companies. The adjustments to the Pro Forma Financial
Statements are based on what we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. The pro forma adjustments are preliminary and have been made solely for
the purpose of providing Pro Forma Financial Statements.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price used in the Pro Forma Financial Statements is based upon assets acquired and liabilities assumed
through the Acquisition. We have made significant assumptions and estimates in determining the preliminary estimated purchase price and the preliminary
allocation of the purchase price in the Pro Forma Financial Statements. These preliminary estimates and assumptions are subject to change as we finalize the
acquisition accounting, including the valuations of the net tangible and intangible assets. The final determination of the value of the assets and liabilities
acquired will likely differ from these preliminary estimates and the differences could be material.



The Pro Forma Financial Statements have been compiled from the following sources:
 

 

•  The financial information of Synaptics has been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“U.S. GAAP”) and
extracted without adjustment from Synaptics’ audited consolidated balance sheet and statement of income as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 24, 2017, contained in Synaptics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on August 18,
2017.

 

 
•  The financial information of Conexant has been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and extracted from Conexant’s unaudited consolidated

balance sheet and statement of income as of and for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017 which includes the results from the fourth quarter of
Conexant’s fiscal year 2016 and the first three quarters of its fiscal year 2017.

Synaptics and Conexant have different fiscal year ends. Synaptics’ fiscal year ends on the last Saturday in June and Conexant’s fiscal year ends on the
Friday closest to the last day in September.



SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

As of June 24, 2017

(in millions)
 
   As of   As of   Total        
   June 24, 2017  June 30, 2017  Adjustments     Combined  
   Synaptics   Conexant           
ASSETS       
Current Assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 367.8  $ 59.4  $ 61.8   (a)  $ 489.0 
Accounts receivable, net    255.2   13.4   —      268.6 
Inventories    131.4   18.6   31.0   (b)   181.0 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    37.6   3.4   (1.5)   (c)   39.5 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total current assets    792.0   94.8   91.3    978.1 
Property and equipment at cost, net    113.8   2.4   0.9   (d)   117.1 
Goodwill    206.8   0.1   152.2   (e)   359.1 
Acquired intangibles    101.0   24.3   120.2   (f)   245.5 
Non-current other assets    53.1   2.8   (1.7)   (c)   54.2 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total assets   $ 1,266.7  $ 124.4  $ 362.9   $ 1,754.0 
    

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY       
Current Liabilities:       

Accounts payable   $ 135.8  $ 10.3  $ —     $ 146.1 
Accrued compensation    31.9   3.4   —      35.3 
Income taxes payable    17.2   0.3   —      17.5 
Acquisition-related liabilities    8.7   —     —      8.7 
Other accrued liabilities    101.8   5.1   2.0   (c), (g)   108.9 
Current portion of long term debt    15.0   —     —      15.0 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total current liabilities    310.4   19.1   2.0    331.5 
Long term debt, net of issuance costs    202.0   15.0   419.3   (h)   636.3 
Deferred tax liabilities    —     1.8   28.1   (h)   29.9 
Other long-term liabilities    14.1   7.0   (2.3)   (c)   18.8 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total liabilities    526.5   42.9   447.1    1016.5 
Stockholders’ Equity:       

Common stock    0.1   —     —      0.1 
Additional paid-in capital    1,004.8   95.0   (3.8)   (i)   1,096.0 
Treasury stock    (980.3)   —     (93.6)   (j)   (1,073.9) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income    1.5   (1.3)   1.3   (k)   1.5 
Retained earnings    714.1   (12.2)   11.9   (k), (l)   713.8 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total stockholders’ equity    740.2   81.5   (84.2)    737.5 
    

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 1,266.7  $ 124.4  $ 362.9   $ 1,754.0 
    

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

See notes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements



SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Income

For the year ended June 24, 2017

(in millions, except per share amounts)
 
      Four          
   Year Ended   Quarters   Total       
   June 24, 2017  June 30, 2017  Adjustments    Combined 
   Synaptics   Conexant          
Net revenue   $ 1,718.2  $ 110.8  $ —     $1,829.0 
Cost of revenue    1,194.6   40.6   23.7  (o)   1,258.9 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Gross margin    523.6   70.2   (23.7)    570.1 
    

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

Operating expenses:       
Research and development    292.3   26.2   —      318.5 
Selling, general, and administrative    137.6   24.5   (3.5)  (m), (n)  158.6 
Acquired intangibles amortization    11.7   5.4   1.0  (o)   18.1 
Restructuring costs    7.3   0.7   —      8.0 
Litigation settlement charge    10.0   —     —      10.0 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total operating expenses    458.9   56.8   (2.5)    513.2 
    

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

Operating income    64.7   13.4   (21.2)    56.9 
Interest and other income    0.7   0.2   —      0.9 
Interest expense    (6.0)   (1.5)   (18.1)  (p)   (25.6) 
Other non-operating income    1.9   0.4   —      2.3 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Income before reorganization costs, provision for income taxes and equity
investment loss    61.3   12.5   (39.3)    34.5 

Provision for income taxes    12.2   (0.2)   (13.8)  (q)   (1.8) 
Equity investment loss    (0.3)   —     —      (0.3) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Net income   $ 48.8  $ 12.7  $ (25.5)   $ 36.0 
    

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

Net income per share:       
Basic   $ 1.40     $ 1.06 

    

 

      

 

Diluted   $ 1.37     $ 1.04 
    

 

      

 

Shares used in computing net income per share:       
Basic    34.8    (r)   33.8 

    

 

      

 

Diluted    35.6    (r)   34.6 
    

 

      

 

See notes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements



Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF ACQUISITION

The accompanying Pro Forma Financial Statements are based on the historical consolidated financial statements of Synaptics and Conexant after giving
effect to the Acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting, as well as certain reclassifications and pro forma adjustments.

In accordance with the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations, the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed will be recorded as
of the completion of the Acquisition at their respective fair values. The excess purchase consideration over the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed will be recorded as goodwill.

The preliminary aggregate purchase price of the Acquisition was approximately $305.8 million in cash (on a cash-free, debt-free basis) and 726,666
shares of our common stock, with $16.8 million of the purchase price held in escrow to secure the Seller Parties’ indemnification obligations under the
purchase agreement. The payment of the purchase price was funded with new convertible debt of $525.0 million.

We identified and recorded the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their preliminary estimated fair values at the Closing Date, and allocated the
remaining value of approximately $146.9 million to goodwill. The values assigned to certain acquired assets and liabilities are preliminary, are based on
information available as of the date of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, and may be adjusted as further information
becomes available during the measurement period of up to 12 months from the date of the Acquisition. Additional information that relates to facts and
circumstances that exist as of the Closing Date may subsequently become available and may result in changes in the values allocated to various assets and
liabilities. Changes in the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed during the measurement period may result in material adjustments to
goodwill. The preliminary purchase price allocation is as follows (in millions):
 

   Amount    
Estimated
useful life    

Incremental
first year

amortization 
Fair value of net tangible assets acquired   $ 49.0     $ —   
Indentifiable intangible assets:       

In-process research and development    13.7    N/A    —   
Developed technology    93.6    4 years    23.4 
Customer relationships    32.1    5 years    6.4 
Trade names    4.8    15 years    0.3 
Backlog    0.3    6 months    0.2 

    
 

      
 

Total identifiable intangible assets acquired    144.5      30.3 
Goodwill    152.3      —   

    
 

      
 

Total acquisition consideration   $345.8     $ 30.3 
    

 

      

 

Under the acquisition method, acquisition-related transaction costs (e.g. advisory, legal, valuation and other professional fees) are not included as
consideration transferred are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred. These costs are not presented in the unaudited pro
forma condensed combined statement of income because they will not have a continuing impact on the combined results.



Intangible Assets

Significant Classes of Intangible Assets Acquired.

In-process research and development relates to Conexant’s voice and audio processing technologies currently under development which have not yet
reached technological feasibility as of the Closing Date. This in-process research and development is expected to be substantially completed during the
current and next fiscal year at which time we will begin amortization over an estimated useful life, which has not been determined.

Developed technology relates to Conexant’s voice and audio technologies that have reached technological feasibility. Developed technology represents
a combination of Conexant’s processes and patents developed through years of experience in design and development of voice and audio integrated circuits.
Synaptics expects to amortize the fair value of the technologies based on the anticipated time frame in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
anticipated to be recognized, which is assumed to amortize on a straight-line basis.

Customer relationships consist of preexisting relationships that are expected to contribute to future earnings. Customer relationship is neither legal nor
contractual, but is separable as an intangible asset. The fair value of these intangible assets is expected to be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period
in which the economic benefits are anticipated to be recognized.

Trade names consists of the Conexant name, which is a well-known in the technology markets in which the Conexant products are marketed and sold.
The fair value of the trade name is expected to be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period in which the economic benefits are anticipated to be
recognized.

Backlog consists of unfulfilled orders as of Closing Date. The value of the backlog is derived from the profit to be generated from fulfilling the orders
on backlog.

Valuation.

The accounting standards define the term “fair value” and set forth the valuation requirements for any asset or liability measured at fair value, and
specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on the inputs used to develop the fair value measures. Fair value is defined as “the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurements date.” This is an exit price
concept for the valuation of the asset or liability. In addition, market participants are assumed to be buyers and sellers in the principal (or most advantageous)
market for the asset or liability. Fair value measurements for an asset assume the highest and best use by these market participants. As a result, Synaptics may
be required to record assets which are not intended to be used or sold and/or to value assets at fair value measures that do not reflect Synaptics’ intended use
of those assets. Many of these fair value measurements can be highly subjective and it is also possible that other professionals, applying reasonable judgment
to the same facts and circumstances, could develop and support a range of alternative estimated amounts.

Goodwill.

Approximately $152.3 million has been preliminarily allocated to goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated purchase price over the fair
values of the underlying net tangible and intangible assets. Goodwill will not be amortized but instead will be tested for impairment at least annually (more
frequently if certain indicators are present). In the event that we determine that the value of goodwill has become impaired, we will incur an accounting
charge for the amount of impairment during the fiscal quarter in which the determination is made.



Debt

To finance the Acquisition, we issued $525 million aggregate principal amount of 0.50% Convertible Senior Notes due in 2022 (the “Notes”) in a
private placement transaction. The net proceeds from the offering, after deducting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by
Synaptics, were approximately $514.5 million. The offering was completed on June 26, 2017, and we received the proceeds on such date.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The pro forma financial information has been compiled in a manner consistent with the accounting policies adopted by Synaptics. The accounting
policies of Conexant under US GAAP were not deemed to be materially different from those adopted by Synaptics.

NOTE 3. PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

The Pro Forma Financial Statements reflect certain adjustments that are necessary to present fairly our unaudited pro forma condensed combined
results of operations and our unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of and for the periods indicated. The pro forma adjustments give
effect to events that are (i) directly attributable to the Acquisition, (ii) factually supportable and (iii) with respect to the statement of income, expected to have
a continuing impact on us, and are based on assumptions that management believes are reasonable given the best information currently available.

The accompanying Pro Forma Financial Statements have been prepared as if the acquisition was completed on June 24, 2017 for balance sheet
purposes and on June 26, 2016 for statement of income purposes and reflect the following preliminary pro forma adjustments, based on estimates, and subject
to change as more information becomes available and after we complete our final analysis of the fair values of both tangible and intangible assets acquired
and liabilities assumed:
 

 (a) To record cash adjustments as follows (in millions):
 

Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes, net of issuance costs  of $ 10.5 million   $ 514.5 
Cash paid as consideration    (303.1) 
Cash paid to repurchase shares in connection with the convertible note issuance    (93.6) 
Cash dividend paid to former unit holders of Conexant    (56.0) 

    
 

Net change in cash   $ 61.8 
    

 

 

 (b) To record the estimated fair value of Conexant’s inventory of $49.6 million, representing an increase of $31.0 million to the carrying value.
 

 
(c) To conform the accounting policy for certain tooling related prepaid assets and liabilities which Synaptics presents on a net basis and Conexant

presented on a gross basis. The adjustment eliminates $1.5 million from prepaid expenses and other current assets, $1.7 million from other
non-current assets, $1.6 million from other accrued liabilities and $1.6 million from other long-term liabilities.

 

 (d) To record estimated fair value adjustment of Conexant’s property and equipment.
 

 (e) To eliminate Conexant’s historical goodwill of $0.1 million and record preliminary estimate of goodwill of $152.3 million.
 

 (f) To eliminate Conexant’s historical intangible assets of $24.3 million and to record the estimated fair value of $144.5 million for acquired
intangibles.

 

 (g) To record the fair value of stock appreciation rights liability of $3.5 million included as part of purchase consideration and certain other working
capital adjustments which net to $0.1 million, including accrued non-recurring acquisition related expenses of $0.3 million.

 

 (h) To eliminate Conexant’s historical debt which was not acquired and to record the convertible notes, net of debt discounts and issuance costs, used
to finance the acquisition. In connection with the convertible note issuance, Synaptics recorded deferred tax liabilities of $28.1 million.



 (i) To record adjustments to stockholder’s equity as follows:
 

Elimination of Conexant’s historical additional paid-in capital balance   $(95.0) 
Record additional paid-in capital resulting from issuance of common stock included in

purchase consideration    39.1 
Record additional paid-in capital related to the issuance of convertible notes    52.1 

    
 

Net change in additional-paid in capital   $ (3.8) 
    

 

 

 (j) To record repurchase of common stock in connection with the convertible notes issuance.
 

 (k) To eliminate Conexant’s historical accumulated other comprehensive income of $1.3 million and accumulated deficit of $12.2 million.
 

 (l) To record Synaptics’ non-recurring acquisition-related expenses of $0.3 million, included in other accrued liabilities as described in note (g).
 

 (m) To eliminate historical acquisition-related expenses of $2.3 million and $1.5 million for Synaptics and Conexant, respectively.
 

 (n) To record incremental depreciation expense of $0.3 million to reflect the increase in fair value of property and equipment based on the
preliminary estimate.

 

 

(o) To eliminate amortization expense of Conexant’s historical intangible assets of $5.4 million and to record amortization expense in costs of
revenue of $23.7 million and $6.4 million in Acquired intangibles amortization based on the preliminary estimated fair values of intangible
assets. The adjustment excludes amortization expense of backlog as the backlog is estimated to be fulfilled within the twelve months following
the close of the Conexant acquisition.

 

 (p) To eliminate Conexant’s historical interest expense and to record interest expense, including amortization of debt discounts, related to the
convertible notes.

 

 (q) To record the income tax impact of the pro forma adjustments.
 

 (r) To record Synaptics’ common stock issued as purchase consideration and record repurchase of Synaptics’ common stock as follows (in millions):
 

   Basic    Diluted 
Historical Weighted Average Shares used in computing net income per share    34.8    35.6 
Plus: Issuance of common stock included as part of purchase consideration    0.7    0.7 
Less: Shares repurchased in connection with the convertible note offering    (1.7)    (1.7) 

    
 

    
 

Pro Forma Weighted Average Shares used in computing net income per share    33.8    34.6 
    

 

    

 


